—--_‘:l"-—- Executive Board

HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL Thursday, 18 April 2024 2.00 p.m.
The Boardroom, Municipal Building

<
5 Moy

Chief Executive

ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

PART 1
Item Page No
1. MINUTES 1-8
2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary interests, to
leave the meeting during any discussion or voting on the item.

3. LEADER'S PORTFOLIO

(A) URGENT DECISIONS 9-10

Please contact Gill Ferguson 0151 511 8059 or
gill.ferguson@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Tuesday, 14 May 2024



Item

4. CORPORATE SERVICES PORTFOLIO
(A) ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION
5. ADULT SOCIAL CARE PORTFOLIO

(A) HEALTH INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY REVIEW
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

6. ENVIRONMENT AND URBAN RENEWAL PORTFOLIO

(A) PRODUCTION OF BOROUGH WIDE HOUSING
STRATEGY

Page No

11-14

15-48

49 - 55

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and

instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Public Do@¥fment Pack Agenda Item 1

EXECUTIVE BOARD

At a meeting of the Executive Board on Thursday, 14 March 2024 in The Boardroom,
Municipal Building

Present: Councillors Wharton (Chair), Harris, M. Lloyd Jones, J. Lowe,
T. Mclnerney, Nelson, P. Nolan, Thompson and Wright

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Dennett
Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: G. Cook, S. Young, M. Reaney, E. Dawson, S. Wallace-Bonner,
G. Ferguson, K. Appleton and S. Riley

Also in attendance: None

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER POWERS AND DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE BOARD

Action
EXB94 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 22 February
2024, were taken as read and signed as a correct record.

DEPUTY LEADER'S PORTFOLIO
EXB95 MENTAL HEALTH IN CONSTRUCTION

The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive,
which highlighted that in 2022, there were 507 cases of
construction workers who had committed suicide. It was
proposed that one of the ways in which to address the high
number of suicides in the construction industry could be for
the Council to introduce a requirement that all future
construction project tenders should include a scored
statement around mental health and how this would be dealt
with amongst both directly employed staff and sub-
contractors.

RESOLVED: That the Board agree that all future | Chief Executive
construction tender processes undertaken by the Council
include a requirement for the main contractor to include a
scored statement around mental health wellbeing amongst




EXB96

EXB97

Page 2

all staff and sub-contractors as part of the process.
CORPORATE SERVICES PORTFOLIO
REVIEW OF COUNCIL WIDE FEES AND CHARGES

The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive,
on the review of the Council wide fees and charges for
2024/25 for services provided by the Council’s Directorates.

The Board was advised that, as part of the budget
preparations for 2024/25, a review of fees and charges had
been carried out. The aim in setting fees and charges was
to ensure that the Council fully recovered the cost incurred
in providing the service, although this was dependent on a
number of factors outside of the agreed charge. These were
detailed in the report and noted as including demand, which
could change year on year and be affected by weather,
economy, regional and national events and demographics;
competition, where there may be a strong competitive
market; and a statutory element, where some charges were
outside the control of the Council and there was no
discretion to what could be charged.

Attached at Appendix A was the proposed schedule
of statutory fees for 2024/25 and the chargeable rates for
The Brindley Theatre and the Registrar's Service were
attached at Appendix B and C respectively, for 2024/25 and
2025/26.

RESOLVED: That

1) the proposed fees and charges for 2024/25 as set out
in Appendix A and for 2024/25 as set out in
Appendices B and C, be approved; and

2) the working group set up by the Environment and
Urban Renewal Policy and Performance Board, who
were currently looking at options for further controls
on Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO), be
requested to consider the issues of HMO licenses,
fees, and other controls.

ICT ROLLING CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The Board considered a report of the Operational
Director ICT and Support Services, which sought approval
for an ICT Rolling Capital Programme increase from £0.5m
to £1.2m and the development of the Council’s digital
strategy.

Operational
Director - Finance



EXB98

Page 3

As the Authority progressed towards a significant
programmed service transformation, it was essential that the
underpinning technology supported the delivery of the Re-
Imagine Halton Transformation Programme and the
‘Customer Journey’ transformation project. The new
proposed systems would benefit the authority as a whole by
providing an automation platform that any service could
access, allowing managers the opportunity to redesign their
service delivery mechanisms and free up service capacity.

RESOLVED: That

1) the development of the Council’s digital strategy as
set out in the report be noted;

2) the proposal to fund this development by increasing
the annual ICT rolling capital programme by £0.5m as
outlined in paragraph 5.7, be agreed; and

3) Council be recommended to increase the annual ICT
rolling capital programme from £0.7m to £1.2m within
the 2024/25 capital programme.

ADULT SOCIAL CARE PORTFOLIO

HALTON INTEGRATED SENSORY SUPPORT SERVICE -
KEY DECISION

The Board received a report of the Executive
Director, Adults, which provided information on the
performance of the Integration Sensory Support Service,
currently provided by Vision Support, including performance
figures for 2023/24 set out in Appendix One and case
studies for the same period detailed in Appendix Two.

The report also considered the future delivery of the
service, and it was noted that the service was operating well
and provided a valuable support mechanism to users. The
service had developed good relationships across the
Borough, made appropriate and timely referrals and it was
believed that there was currently little or no other market
options in the Borough.

In view of the details, it was recommended that a
direct award, for a further five-year contract, should be
granted to Vision Support. This would offer the service the
financial stability to sustain and develop the service.

Reason(s) for Decision

Operational
Director ICT and
Support Services



EXB99

Page 4

This is an existing service which is operating well. It is
believed that no other market competition exists within the
Borough.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

The service could go out for full tender. However, when the
service was last tendered it was as an Integrated Sensory
Service. The organisations which already delivered the
elements of the service, for sight and hearing impairment
needs, came together to submit a bid. No other submissions
were made.

Also ceasing delivery of the service would impact negatively
on a vulnerable cohort of the Borough’s population and likely
result in more costly, crisis intervention being made.

Implementation Date

To assure continuity of service a further contract needs to be
in place by 1 July 2024, as the current contract expires on
30 June 2024

RESOLVED: The Board approve a Waiver in
compliance with Procurement Standing Order 1.14.4 iv of
Part 3 of Procurement Standing Orders, for a direct award to
support the continuation of the provision of Integrated
Sensory Support Service in Halton delivered through
contract with Vision Support for the period from 1 July 2024
to 30 June 2029.

HOME BASED RESPITE CARE SERVICES IN HALTON -
KEY DECISION

The Board considered a report of the Executive
Director, Adults, which sought approval for a Waiver in
compliance with Procurement Standing Order 1.14.4 iv of
Part 3 of Procurement Standing Orders, for a direct award to
support the continuation of the provision of the Home-Based
Respite Care Service in Halton, delivered by Care at Home
Group Limited (CAHG), for the period from 19 April to 18
October 2025. The waiver would enable a new procurement
process for the supply of Home Based Respite Care Service
in Halton to commence and it was anticipated that this would
be a 3-year contract.

Reason(s) for Decision

Approval of the Direct Award to Care at Home Group
Limited for an 18 month period would support continuity of

Executive Director
of Adult Services



Page 5

care for a vulnerable client cohort and allow for sufficient
time to undertake a new procurement process for the
service.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

Allow the Home Based Respite Service to cease.

Implementation Date

The 18-month contract would take effect from 19 April 2024.

RESOLVED: That the Board approve a Waiver in | Executive Director
compliance with Procurement Standing Order 1.14.4 iv of | of Adult Services
Part 3 of Procurement Standing Orders, for a direct award to
support the continuation of the provision of the Home-Based
Respite Care Service in Halton delivered by Care at Home
Group Limited for the period from 19 April to 18 October
2025.

ENVIRONMENT AND URBAN RENEWAL PORTFOLIO

EXB100 PRELIMINARY ESTIMATES FOR STREET LIGHTING
ENERGY PROCUREMENT

The Board considered a report of the Executive
Director Environment and Regeneration, which sought
approval for the Council to utilise Dukefield Energy (formerly
Utilities Procurement Group UPG), as specialist Energy
advisory for the Council’s un-metered electricity supply
contract for street lighting. The current un-metered electricity
supply contract for street lighting with SSE Energy would
expire on 31 March 2024, and it was proposed that
Dukefield Energy would invite tenders for a period of 12 and
36 months as recommended.

The Board was advised that a preliminary recent
market enquiry with the current supplier had suggested the
new rates would represent an annual decrease of up to
18%/300k depending on the length of contract term chosen.

RESOLVED: That the Board endorse Executive Director

Environment &

1) the use of the National Public Sector Energy | Regeneration
Framework for the purchase of un-metered energy in
compliance with Procurement Standing Order 1.4.1;

2) that expenditure is anticipated to be in excess of
£1.0m per annum; and




EXB101

EXB102

Page 6

3) that Dukefield Energy continue to be used to manage
the Council’s street lighting energy provision.

SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT
1972 AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO
INFORMATION) ACT 1985

The Board considered:

1) whether Members of the press and public should be
excluded from the meeting of the Board during
consideration of the following item of business in
accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 because it was likely that, in
view of the nature of the business to be considered,
exempt information would be disclosed, being
information defined in Section 100 (1) and paragraph
3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972; and

2) whether the disclosure of information was in the
public interest, whether any relevant exemptions were
applicable and whether, when applying the public
interest test and exemptions, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighed that in
disclosing the information.

RESOLVED: That as, in all the circumstances of the
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighed that in disclosing the information, members of
the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following items of business in
accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 because it was likely that, in view of the nature of
the business, exempt information would be disclosed, being
information defined in Section 100 (1) and paragraph 3 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

DEPUTY LEADER'S PORTFOLIO

OPERATOR AT ELITE HOUSE, SHAW STREET,
RUNCORN - KEY DECISION

The Board considered a report of the Executive
Director, Environment and Regeneration, that provided an
update on the procurement of a Concession Contract for an
Operator at Elite House for the Town Deal Enterprise Hub
Project. The report also sought Board approval to award a
Concession Contract to the successful tenderer and for the
disposal of land.




Page 7

RESOLVED: That
1) the report be noted;

2) authority be given to the Executive Director,
Environment & Regeneration in consultation with the
Portfolio Holders for Resources and Major Projects to
award the contract following the evaluation of the
tenders;

3) approve the disposal of Elite House through a long
term Lease, Agreement for Lease and Asset
Management Agreement; and

4) authority be given to the Operational Director for
Economy, Enterprise and Property to arrange for all
required documentation for the redevelopment works
and land transaction to be completed to the
satisfaction of the Executive Director, Environment &
Regeneration and Operational Director Legal and
Democratic Services, in consultation with the Portfolio
Holders for Corporate Services and Major Projects.

N.B. Councillor J. Lowe declared a Disclosable Other Interest in the
following item of business as she has a family member employed at
St Lukes Care Home.

ADULT SOCIAL CARE PORTFOLIO

EXB103 CARE PROVIDER CONTRACT UPLIFT 2024/25 - KEY
DECISION

The Board considered a report of the Executive
Director — Adult Services, which advised on the outcome of
the consultation with domiciliary care, direct payments,
supported living and care home providers within Halton, in
respect of the Care Provider Contract Uplift for 2024/25.

RESOLVED: That the Board:
1) note the contents of the report;

2) approval to be given to offer the recommended uplift
to care providers for 2024/25

EMPLOYMENT, LEARNING AND SKILLS, LEISURE,
COMMUNITY AND CULTURE PORTFOLIO

Executive Director
Environment &
Regeneration

Executive Director
of Adult Services



Page 8

EXB104 BRINDLEY THEATRE EXTENSION

The Board considered a report which provided an
update on the tender returns for the Brindley Theatre
Extension. The report also sought Board approval for further
funding and the award of the contract.

RESOLVED: That the recommendations set out in | Executive Director
the report be approved. Environment &
Regeneration
MINUTES ISSUED: 19 March 2024
CALL-IN: 26 March 2024 at 5.00 pm.

Any matter decided by the Executive Board may be called in no
later than 5.00pm on 26 March 2024.

Meeting ended at 2.35 p.m.



Page 9 Agenda Item 3a

REPORT TO: Executive Board
DATE: 18 April 2024
REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive
PORTFOLIO: Leader
SUBJECT: Urgent Decisions
WARDS: Borough Wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To bring to the attention of Executive Board urgent decision/s taken since the
last meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the report is noted.
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 The Council’s Constitution gives authority to the Chief Executive to take urgent
decision/s which are required before the next formal meeting of Executive Board.

These must be made in consultation with the Leader of the Council where

practicable, and with the Operational Director — Finance and/or Operational

Director — Legal and Democratic Services, where necessary. They must also be

reported for information to the next practically available meeting of the Board.
3.2 More information on each can be found on the Council’s website:

http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1

3.3 The urgent decision/s taken since the last meeting of Executive Board:

Date Decision Decision details
taken

15 March 2024 | Transfer of Youth Justice Services to Cheshire West

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are none other than the constitutional requirement to report urgent
decisions for information.

5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS
5.1 None.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES


http://councillors.halton.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1

Page 10

6.1 Children and Young People in Halton
None.
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton
None.
6.3 A Healthy Halton
None.
6.4 A Safer Halton
None.
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal
None.
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS
7.1 The report is for information, and there are no risk issues arising from it.
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
8.1 None.
9. CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS
9.1 There are no climate change implications.

10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

10.1 No background papers were used in the preparation of this report. Further
information on the decision/s taken is available from the link in Paragraph 3.2.



Page 11 Agenda Item 4a

REPORT TO: Executive Board

DATE: 18 April 2024

REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director — Legal and Democratic
Services

PORTFOLIO: Corporate Services

SUBJECT: Annual Review of Constitution 2024

WARDS: Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to ask the Board to seek the approval of the
Council to a small number of changes to the Constitution.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That Executive Board recommends Council
to approve the changes to the Constitution including the matters
set out in Appendix 1.

3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 The revised version of the Constitution picks up the changes to the
Council’'s working arrangements that have taken place during the year,
as well as other changes which are intended to assist the Council to
operate more effectively.

3.2 The proposals for change have been considered by the Chief Executive
and the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services in accordance with
Article 16.02. Apart from the purely technical changes, the proposed
amendments that are considered to be of particular significance are
listed in Appendix A to this report.

4.0 POLICY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS

4.1 All legislative changes have been considered. However, no further
amendments, over and above those already outlined, are required at the
present time. Any other required changes during the period 2024/25 will
be the subject of further reports when dates and details are available.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

5.1 Children and Young People in Halton

5.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton



5.3

5.4

5.5

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

Page 12

A Healthy Halton
A Safer Halton
Halton’s Urban Renewal

The changes proposed are designed to support the continued delivery of
the Council’s priorities.

RISK ANALYSIS

The Council needs to ensure that its Constitution is regularly updated so
that it continues to support efficient, transparent and accountable
decision-making by the authority.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

None.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

There are no implications.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

None under the meaning of the Act.



Page 13

Appendix 1

Proposed Significant Changes to the Constitution

Whistle Blowing Policy

This section has been updated so that it aligns with the NHS Freedom to
Speak Up Policy. This is a requirement for any area of the Council that
delivers NHS Services (such as the Positive Behaviour Service). These are
minor changes and they do not affect how the policy operates in practice.

Finance Standing Orders

An amendment to section 3.4.1 relating to Certifying Officers. The change is
to update job titles.

Para 3.4.1 — An amendment to confirm that agency workers / interims in
management roles are authorised to approve expenditure on behalf of the
Council.

Para 5.1.5 (capital virement) — rewording to make it clear that virement in
excess of £500k must be reported to Executive Board and subsequently
approved by Council.

Procurement Standing Orders

e The Public Procurement Act 2023 (PPA23) is to be implemented in
October 2024, as the secondary legislation is to be finalised and laid
before Parliament in March 2024, Alongside the current Public
Procurement Regulations 2015 the wording Public Procurement
Legislation to allow flexibility for the new PPA23 changes to be
complied with until detailed changes can be made in 2025-26
Procurement Standing Orders.

e Section 1.3.5 - relating to Preliminary Estimates Reports has been
amended to increase the value threshold exceeding £1 Million to
exceeding £5 Million, this will bring the threshold in line with PSO 1.9.4
— Acceptance of tender by Executive Board.

e Section 1.11.2 — Cyber Security has been included within Insurance
requirements.

e Section 1.11.4 - relating to signed contracts in accordance with Article
14.04 has been updated to replicate the following text in compliance
with an Audit recommendation to make it clear that two signatories of
the Council are required for contracts exceeding £1 Million in value;
Such contracts must either be signed by an Officer of the Authority at
Operational Director level, together with another Officer of the Authority
nominated by the said Operational Director or made under the common
seal of the Council attested by the Operational Director (Legal and
Democratic Services) or his/her nominee.



Page 14

e Expenditure — Finance Standing Orders (FSO) Table — Update to
Certifying Officer details FSO 3.4

Pg 134 Standing Order relating to the sale of assets including land.

Additional wording will be added to provide further detail on the disposal
method.

Additional Note:

A consultation exercise is presently underway with regard to job titles of
Strategic Directors, Operational Directors and Divisional Managers.
Depending on the outcome, there may be changes which would need to be
reflected in the Constitution. If the exercise is completed in time, the list will be
reported to Annual Council for approval. If not, the changes will be included in
the next review of the Constitution and the present designations will be
included this time.



Page 15 Agenda Iltem 5a

REPORT TO: Executive Board

DATE: 18t April 2024

REPORTING OFFICER: Executive Director, Adults Directorate

PORTFOLIO: Adult Social Care

SUBJECT: Health Inequalities Scrutiny Review Report and
Recommendations

WARD(S) Borough Wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

2.0

3.0

3.1

3.2

This report provides a summary of the evidence provided as part of the
scrutiny review of health inequalities in Halton, conclusions of the Scrutiny
Group members and recommendations to the Board. The Health Policy
and Performance Board agreed area of scrutiny for 2024 is also outlined.

RECOMMENDATION: That

1) The report and recommendations be noted
2) The Board note the scrutiny topic for 2024

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The Health Inequalities topic was approved by the Health Policy and
Performance Board in June 2023. Between July and December, a
scrutiny group met monthly to receive evidence from several contributors.
(Details of the membership and contributors can be found in appendix 1).
The report/recommendations were agreed by Members at the February
2024 Health Policy and Performance Board.

The scope of the scrutiny review is detailed below:

Health Policy and Performance Board will look at health inequalities
across Halton and approaches to reduce them. The scrutiny review will
consider:
e The current epidemiological distribution of health inequalities
e Recent trends
e The impact of external forces such as the cost-of-living crisis and
COVID-19
e Approaches that are being used to address health inequalities
through contracts, partnership working and direct provision of
services.

*Whilst health inequalities may span the life course, this scrutiny topic
review will be concerned with health inequalities from an ADULTS’
perspective.



Page 16

3.3 The scrutiny review process provided Members the opportunity to gain an
understanding of:
How health inequality is defined

How health inequalities are measured through key indicators of
public health/health inequality, and where Halton is in relation to
regional/national averages

What the drivers of health inequality are

What the outcomes of health inequality are

Consider the current good practice, pressures, and emerging
issues in Halton, including barriers and enablers to access to
specific provisions, service user experience and outcomes and
the impact of some specific wider determinants of health.

3.3

3.4

Each

evidence

area

generated several service  specific

recommendations, however, there were common themes across all
areas. In considering the evidence presented, Members propose the
following recommendations for action;

Thematic area

Recommendation

Partnership

Continue to build on relationships with key partners to
develop approaches to engage with hard-to-reach
cohorts through increasing awareness of the
determinants of health inequality, reducing stigma
associated with seeking help and developing effective
pathways to support - Joining the dots between different
agencies working with the different determinants of
health inequality and helping people navigate effectively.

Communication

Community engagement and profile raising of the
breadth of support available should be a priority.
Individual service specific plans should be developed to
ensure that a universal support offer is communicated.
The plan should link existing local and national support
for each determinant of health, considering how the most
vulnerable and hard to reach cohorts can be informed of
support through targeted, multi-channel approaches.

Lobbying
/involvement in
national action

On local issues identified in this report that may require a
central solution, such as utilising unclaimed benefits,
issues relating to housing and homelessness — Halton
Borough Council and its key partners should actively
engage in national lobbying and consultations. Members
should be kept informed of key issues.

Risk Mitigation

Where risks are identified within service specific risk
mitigation plans should be put in place — for example
where funding models or changes in key partner
business models are anticipated to have an impact on
what/how services are delivered.

Service Specific
Action Health
Inequality Plan

Throughout this process, and outlined in this report,
recommendations have been made that relate to each
specific evidence area. These should be considered by
service managers as part of business planning, service
development and risk management.

Funding

Funding of commissioned services that support the




3.5

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 17

determinants of health inequalities should be reviewed
and reported to HPPB, to better understand the impact of
short vs long term funding.

Social Prescribers A request for a presentation on the activities of the ICB
7 commissioned social connectors service to the HPPB so
that the Board may better understand the role they play
and impact on addressing health inequality in Halton.

Scrutiny topic for 2024

Several areas were proposed for scrutiny during 2024/2025, with the
Health Policy and Performance Board agreeing on the topic area below,
for which a topic brief will be developed and presented to Health Policy
and performance Board in due course.

A focus on Community (non-GP) NHS services - This could include one
or more of: Northwest Ambulance Service, Learning Disability and
Autism, Mental Health, Community Nursing, Podiatry, Urgent Care
Centres, Community Therapy, changes to the Musculoskeletal services.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The recommendations outlined in the report should be considered in
service development, commissioning and continuous improvement work
within each service area.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Some of the issues raised within the report, and recommendations,
require a central government response (Homelessness and Discretionary
Grant allocations).

Any emerging financial/resource implications associated with the
recommendations will be analysed as part of established service
development, commissioning and continuous improvement protocols.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Children & Young People in Halton
Whilst the scope of this scrutiny review focused on Adults, the impact of
health inequalities starts from birth and across the whole life cycle.

Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton
As highlighted in the report, employment, learning and skills are a key
determinant of health inequality in Halton.

A Healthy Halton

Action on health inequalities in Halton is being coordinated by Public
Health but extends further than just health interventions. As outlined in
the report, social and lifestyle drivers are key determinants of health



6.4

6.5

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

Page 18

inequalities.

A Safer Halton
Social and lifestyle factors are key determinants of health inequalities.

Halton’s Urban Renewal
Community assets and the physical environment can facilitate good

health and wellbeing, access to health, education, employment and social
opportunities.

RISK ANALYSIS

Failure to take action to address the wider determinants of health could
further result in a widening of the health inequalities gap in Halton.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
None identified.
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

None identified



Page 19

Appendix 1
Scrutiny Group Membership
Members Officers
Clir Eddie Dourley - Chair Dr Ifeoma Onyia — Director of Public
Clir Sandra Baker — Vice Chair Health
Clir Sian Davidson
Clir Chris Loftus Emma Bragger — ASC Service

Clir Tom Stretch

CllIr Louise Goodall
Clir Emma Garner
Clir Mike Fry

Clir Victoria Begg
Cllr Sharon Thornton

CliIr Louise Nolan Development Officer

Contributors

e Transport to health and
wellbeing hubs in the borough

Date Theme Speaker
Thursday Background and timeframe of review | Dr Ifeoma Onyia — Director
6th July of Public Health
Thursday Wider Determinants lan Baddily - Divisional
31st August e Cost Of Living Manager
e Food Matt Hancock - Public
e Warmth Health Wider Determinants
e Energy Practice Manager
Thursday Health care Interventions to reduce Tony Leo - ICB Place
28t Sept Health Inequalities Director
Thursday Wider Determinants Patricia Preston — Housing
26t Oct e Housing Solutions Manager

lan Boyd - Lead Officer
Transport Co-ordination

NOV
Thursday Wider Determinants Lynsey Carr - Halton Into
30th Nov e Employment Jobs (35mins) and Stephen
¢ |ncome Maximisation Purcell - HIT Public Health
Support Schemes Paul Garnett - Divisional

Manager Benefits David
Gray - Welfare Rights
Manager

Matt Hancock - Public
Health Wider Determinants
Practice Manager




—'\)L\\—
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Health Policy and Performance Board

Scrutiny Review 2023

Health Inequalities

Findings & Recommendations
December 2023



Page 21

CONTENTS

Contents Page
1.0 Purpose of this Report 3
2.0 Structure of the Report 3
3.0 Introduction 3
4.0 Methodology 4
5.0 Summary of Evidence 4
» Defining health inequality and the local picture
» Public Health response to the cost of living crisis
» Improving access to Primary Care
» Housing and homelessness
» Transport
» Employment, Skills and Health
» Income maximisation
6.0 Recommendations 24
Appendix Number

Evidence presented to the group 1



1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

Page 22

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the evidence
provided, conclusions and the recommendations of the Health Policy and
Performance (HPPB) Scrutiny Group in relation to the Health Inequalities
topic brief (outlined in full in Section 3).

The scrutiny review process provided Members the opportunity to gain an
understanding of:

How health inequality is defined

How health inequalities are measured through key indicators of public
health/health inequality, and where Halton is in relation to regional/national
averages

What the drivers of health inequality are

What the outcomes of health inequality are

Consider the current good practice, pressures, and emerging issues in
Halton, including barriers and enablers to access to specific provisions,
service user experience and outcomes and the impact of some specific
wider determinants of health.

STRUCTURE OF THE REPORT

This report contains an introduction providing the topic brief and context, a
summary of the evidence, conclusions, and recommendations.

Appendices to this report provide the evidence presentations.
INTRODUCTION

Scope of the scrutiny topic review and reason it was commissioned

This report was commissioned as a scrutiny working group of the Health
Policy and Performance Board. The scope of the review is shown below:

Health Policy and performance Board will look at health inequalities across
Halton and approaches to reduce them. The scrutiny review will consider:
e The current epidemiological distribution of health inequalities
e Recent trends
e The impact of external forces such as the cost-of-living crisis and
COVID-19
e Approaches that are being used to address health inequalities through
contracts, partnership working and direct provision of services.

*Whilst health inequalities may span the life course, this scrutiny topic review
will be concerned with health inequalities from an ADULTS’ perspective.



Page 23

3.2  Membership of the Scrutiny Working Group:
Members Officers
Clir Eddie Dourley - Chair Dr Ifeoma Onyia — Director of Public
Clir Sandra Baker — Vice Chair Health
Clir Sian Davidson
Clir Chris Loftus Emma Bragger — ASC Service
ClIr Louise Nolan Development Officer

Cllr Tom Stretch

CliIr Louise Goodall
Cllr Emma Garner
Clir Mike Fry

Clir Victoria Begg
ClIr Sharon Thornton

4.0

5.0

5.1

METHODOLOGY
This scrutiny review was conducted via:

e Monthly meetings of the scrutiny review topic group.

Presentations by key Officers of HBC and partner organisations
(presentations can be found in Appendix 1).

Provision of information both written and verbal.

The evidence provided to Members considered:

How health inequality is defined and measured

The health inequality picture in Halton

The impacts of health inequality

Key determinants of health- access to Primary Care services

Wider determinants of health - cost of living, transport, housing and
employment.

VVVVY®®

SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE, CONCULSIONS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Evidence Area 1 — Defining health inequalities and understanding the local
picture.

Health inequality is defined as avoidable, unfair and systematic
differences in health between different groups of people. They are rooted
deep within our society, and they are widening, leading to unequal
outcomes as well as varied access to services, and poor experiences of
care. This results in earlier deaths,lost years of healthy
life, intergenerational effects from traumatic experiences, and
has significant economic costs for society. Yet, health inequalities are often
preventable.

Measuring health inequalities is complex. Using both ‘hard facts’ i.e.,
quantitative measures such as numbers of deaths or those with chronic
illness, or qualitative methods such as surveys of how people feel and



Page 24

think about their health and services they access/ don't access, a
representative picture of the state of the borough’s health inequality gap
can be developed. Health inequality in Halton can be measured by both
comparing the borough to other council areas and measures to look at
differences in health within Halton.

5.1.5 A snapshot of how health inequalities in Halton compare to other
Northwest authorities is shown in the illustration below. Areas in red circles
show where Halton has greater risk of health inequality or poorer health
outcomes than other northwest local authority areas, green symbolises
less health inequality or better health outcomes. The smaller triangles to
the right of each circle show if there is improvement (green), worsening
(red) or no change (amber) since the previous period it was measured.

‘What does health look like in Halton?

r 2 2 2 *COVID.1% has impactsd the collection of dats for tha indicstor
Halton 3 Ilfe calrse StatIStlcs 2022 **Definition of indicator has changed from 1019 to 2020 HALTON FACTS

A COMparison 1o the Nort West

a—@— S—H——®

Population
About 129,800 people lve in

Halton.

By 2041, this is projected to

change:
Starting Smoking ot time Healthy Breastmilk for Infant MMR Obass chiliren Good level of Stase children #
Well of delivery birthweight baby's first martality waccination (age 4-5) devilapment at {age 10-11) aged-14 J 11%
(term bablei) feed atagel end of recepticn age 15-64 J. 5%
age 65+ T 38%
Deprivation
v wk W 48.6% of Halton’s population
© livein the top 2096 most
' | deprived areas in England.
Living §
Cervical cancer Breast CARCEr Aduls Adults Wl Teenage Admiifiont dus Alcohal-ipecific Child Pove l'hl'
sCreening sCreening overweight smoking Rregnancy & Bilf-hafim hadpital sdmissions 16.6% of children aged 0-15 live
or obese (1024 years) [under 18)

in relative low incoma households

(43 4

Direction of travel

2 —(b)— B —Q)—® —(H)—n o

¥ Worss than last pericd

Claiming out of Lofig term People NHS Health <75 cardicvascular 7% cancer <75 respiratary L Comparator
work benefits  conditions/disability with high Check uptake disease deaths deaths disease deaths
affecting day-to-day anxiety -

schivity o lot Qem"

Statistical significance to North West

Ho diffarant

O Worse O Lower

L [ ]
[ ] Q Fof s information, pheass Contact
- ? \i — ﬂ % . Haltan Barough
- Council's Public Health Intelligence Team
Ageing

health.intelligence @ halton gov.uk

Life expectancy at Dlder prople sl at Dementa Fusl povarty Inijurses dud 10 weell
2 YRars of age home 31 days afver diagnosis fals (age E5+) b e
hospital discharge COAIM SAVEGEAD MOW DAIRAS PN I0LE /L4 8T

Lok dlarabin FHA 3043

5.1.6 Key messages in relation to health inequalities in Halton are:
e Health inequalities in Halton are often avoidable.
e Life expectancy varies by ward in Halton.
e Health drivers of health inequalities in Halton are circulatory disease,
cancer, respiratory and digestive conditions.
o Lifestyle drivers of health inequalities in Halton are smoking, diet, physical
activity, weight, alcohol use.



5.1.7

5.1.8

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

Page 25

Social drivers of health inequalities in Halton are poverty, education,
employment, and housing.

People in Halton suffer from multiple drivers of health inequality.

Health inequality is more than just access to medical services, the wider
determinants of health are the driving factors affecting life expectancy and
long-term health condition free years.

There is provision in Halton to respond to some immediate/crisis social
situations, and longer-term solution planning to try and counteract some of
the drivers of health inequalities such as cost of living.

Tackling health inequalities demands a cross council response, not just
Public Health/Health response, and involves other key stakeholders such
as wider council services and the voluntary and community sectors.

In order to understand, assess and make recommendations, it was agreed
that members of this group would consider:

Access to specific provisions, service user experience and outcomes
Barriers and enablers to provision

Some key wider determinants of health

Examples of good practice identified gaps and emerging issues.

Conclusion

The topic of Health Inequalities is vast and impacts across the whole life
cycle. It was agreed that due to the limited time the group had to undertake
the scrutiny work, specific areas of focus would be identified relating to
Adults. These were areas that are particularly pertinent to Halton and the
health inequalities that it experiences:

Wider determinants of health: housing, transport, employment, cost of
living/fuel, income maximisation

How health services are working to reduce health inequalities through
improved access to Primary Care

How public health services are working to reduce health inequalities.

Evidence Area 2 — Public Health response to the cost-of-living crisis

The Health Improvement Team (HIT) are providing front line support to
people to make lifestyle improvements. There is now a dedicated post in
place to coordinate action against the driving factors/wider determinants of
health inequalities and work towards addressing the underlying factors that
determine people’s health and lifestyle choices.

It was reported that crisis food support in Halton has seen a notable
increase in demand since September 2022, correlating with the national
increase in the general cost of living including inflationary increases in the
cost of food. Several interventions are in place to manage food crisis:
Food Banks and food vouchers, incorporating wrap around support for
longer term improvements. Medium term support consists of, community
shops, social supermarkets, with work underway to communicate the
availability of this support and reduce stigma attached with accessing food
support. Community partners are proving wrap around information and
advice for people accessing the food crisis support to help tackle the
causes of food poverty, such as education, employment, and poor health.



5.2.3

524

5.2.5

5.2.6

Page 26

Likewise, demand for energy support has also seen a significant increase
during 2022, with around 100 people per month accessing Citizens Advice
Bureau (CAB) for support. Energy crisis support is made up of
discretionary financial support, advice from CAB and work with Energy
Projects Plus to promote energy efficiency within homes and access to
grants for home improvements linked to improvements in warmth. Medium
term support includes retrofit schemes to improve energy efficiency and
reduce usage.

Annually, the council provides a winter cost of living response which is
promoted through a multi-channel marketing campaign to raise awareness
amongst the HBC staff base, front line staff working with partner agencies
and residents of support available and education about how to keep warm.
Winter warm spaces are provided across the brough in community spaces
such as community centres, providing a warm environment and warm
refreshments for people who are unable to heat their homes.

The focus of a Wider Determinants Coordinator role going forward is to
look at the root causes of poverty (the biggest determinant of health
inequality) through the establishment of the Poverty Alliance - a group
made up of national action groups, voluntary sector and community groups
in Halton working together to identify those at risk, consider the causes
and develop action to address the determinants and practical support—
such as the establishment of social supermarkets in the borough providing
affordable groceries.

There are number of challenges in understanding the root causes of
poverty and responding to them:

The financial pressures are presenting in groups who traditionally would be
seen as at risk, such as young families, people in low paid work and single
people.

A reliance on input and action from the voluntary and community sector —
who themselves are under pressure.

Increasing demand, for example, in response to increased fuel and food
prices.

Sporadic nature of interventions.

Short term, reactive funding interventions heavily reliant on the national
household support fund which ends in March 24.

Awareness — increasingly new cohorts of people requiring support, but not
aware of what support is available.

Conclusion

5.2.7

5.2.8

There are several crisis and medium-term interventions in response to
food and energy poverty, key determinants for health inequality, that are
delivered or coordinated by HBC Public Health.

As a result of work by the public health team it has been identified that
people accessing this support are experiencing financial poverty either as
a short term or longer-term pressure, many for the first time. The



5.2.9

Page 27

interventions in place are pulling in support from other partners to provide
a more holistic offer to people who are presenting with food and/or energy
poverty, with the aim of helping the immediate situation and offering
potential solutions for more sustainable changes.

The establishment of a Wider Determinants Coordinator post has and will
continue to tie together the various strands of support available from the
council, partners, voluntary and community sector and national companies
and bodies making the Halton offer cohesive. Along with the establishment
of the Poverty Alliance, causes of financial poverty — the basis of other
forms of poverty (food, energy) leading to a widening in the health
inequalities gap, will be explored and through collaborative working and
where possible solutions identified.

5.2.10 The issue of financial poverty leading to other inequalities, such as health,

education and employment requires a multi-agency, multi strategy
approach.

5.2.11 Recommendations

Public Health to further explore connections with community assets
such as allotment associations, regarding opportunities to access surplus
harvest and strengthen links between the community and the community
shops/supermarkets. The Poverty Alliance to provide twice yearly reports
to HPPB, to include information on Foodbank usage, and fuel poverty
initiatives.

Integrated Care Board (ICB) commissioned Social Connectors to
provide a report to the HPPB so that the Board may understand the
role and impact of social connectors in supporting work to address
health inequalities.

Explore potential for community/voluntary groups and HBC buildings
to further support the annual warm spaces interventions with not only
use of venues, but supply of refreshments to participants using the spaces,
through accessing community funding opportunities.

Awareness raising of the range of public health interventions to help
with the cost-of-living crisis is key. As different cohorts, who have
previously not engaged with support but are increasingly needing help, it is
important that all Halton households know what is available/eligibility. ‘Self-
help’ information, such as energy efficiency advice, signposting to local
and national help along with the direct support available in Halton should
be actively promoted through a multi-channel/multi agency approach and
awareness raising should consider ways to reduce stigma to increase
uptake of interventions.

Whilst corporate social responsibility clauses in procurement contracts are
being utilised, explore further opportunities to access support from
industry to support initiatives.



5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5

5.3.6

Page 28

Evidence Area 3 — Improving Access to Primary Care. Cheshire and
Merseyside Integrated Care Board, Halton (ICB)

GP Access

The COVID19 peak pandemic response had impacted significantly on
access to health care. Routine dental care was paused nationally, and
emergency dental service arrangements put in place; Primary Care moved
to triage for face-to-face appointments etc. However, community pharmacy
remained open and continued to provide several lower-level health
interventions and advice, along with roll out of the COVID-19 vaccine
programme.

During the period April 2022-March 2023 there were over 704,000
appointments across the 14 GP practices in Halton. Appointment numbers
increased by 29% over the 12 months, with 73% of them being face to face
and 51% being undertaken by a GP. Fifty-four percent (54%) of
appointments were provided on the day of requesting.

Across the 9 Cheshire and Merseyside localities, data for the period
showed that Halton had the second highest % of face-to-face
appointments, 3 lowest appointments by telephone, joint 4" highest
appointments provided by GP and 3™ highest appointments provided on
the same day.

Data for the period showed that Halton was above the Cheshire and
Merseyside and national average (%) for face-to-face appointments, just
below the Cheshire and Merseyside average, but below the national
average for appointments provided by a GP, above both the Cheshire and
Merseyside and National average for appointment provided on the day.
The data showed that there were a significant number of ‘did not attends’ —
over 2000 (almost 6%).

Within Cheshire and Merseyside, Cheshire has higher rates of access than
Merseyside. Those with lower rates of access tend to correlate with areas
of greater deprivation. Compared to areas in Cheshire, Halton has a
greater challenge in the recruitment and retention of GPs, nurses, clinical
pharmacy, and physiotherapists. Halton has 64.4 FTE GPs per 100,000
patients, 4" highest across Cheshire and Merseyside. There is a new
General Practice Workforce group established by the Integrated Care
Board to build links with regional Training Hub to access to support and
training.

Patient Experience

National GP Patient Survey 2023 suggests that people’s overall
experience of general practice has dipped. Halton scored 69% positive



5.3.7

5.3.8

5.3.9

Page 29

comments, broadly similar to the national and Cheshire and Merseyside
averages.

Positive responses to ‘experience of making an appointment’ have fallen in
Halton to 45%, mirroring the national and regional trends, but Halton
performs worse than the national and Cheshire and Merseyside averages.

Positive responses to ‘how easy is it to get through to someone at your GP
practice on the phone?’ have dropped to 38% for Halton, well below the
national and Cheshire and Merseyside averages.

Positive responses to ‘how easy is it to use your GP’s website to look for

information or access services?’ is at 64%, similar to the national and
Cheshire and Merseyside averages.

Recovering access to Primary Care

5.3.10 The ICB Primary Care Access Recovery Programme Board meets to

monitor delivery the ‘Primary Care Recovery’ plan to further improve
access to Primary Care. Primary Care is more than just access to a GP via
a face-to-face appointment. Primary Care includes other health and care
professionals, such as community pharmacists, physio therapists, practice
nurses and advanced practitioners who can deliver health interventions
and arrange onward referrals through a range of methods such as online,
phone and face to face.

5.3.11 Aims of the plan are to reduce the barriers to accessing primary care and

improve enablers to primary care access. Barriers include the 8am rush for
appointments and appointment capacity, missed appointments,
recruitment, and retention of staff and clinical professionals. Enablers
include empowering and educating patients to navigate to the most
appropriate service, manage expectations so that people know how their
needs will be met when they contact their practice, manage increasing
demands on primary care through developing modern general practice that
is integrated with other services such as social care, building capacity
within the current and future resources and cutting bureaucracy. A national
bureaucracy busting concordat has been developed to reduce
unnecessary bureaucracy and administrative in general practice with the
intention releasing more time for care

5.3.12 Key actions in the recovery plan are summarised below:

Improving information and NHS app functionality
Increasing self-directed care

Expanding community pharmacy

Better digital telephony in GP practices

Simpler online requests

Faster navigation, assessment, and response
Larger multidisciplinary teams

10



Page 30

¢ Increase recruitment/retention

e Primary care estates/ anticipation of demand/capacity
e Improving the primary/secondary care interface

e Building on the Bureaucracy Busting Concordat

Conclusion

5.3.13 Timely access to Primary Care clearly can have a direct impact on health,
and health inequality. The impact of clinical and other staff vacancies and
an increasing demand for services provides may further exacerbate health
inequalities in Halton. However, technology, public awareness campaigns
and improved navigation can provide solutions to some of the key
demands on Primary Care. Some of those solutions can be designed
quickly and implemented at a local level (regional or place), others may
require wider NHS input taking more time, such as technology/telephony
systems.

5.3.14 The COVID impact legacy of how Primary Care operated during the peak
pandemic response is still evident in people’s actual experiences and
perceptions of access to Primary Care and their experience of using
Primary Care, as shown in the survey results.

5.3.15 Data shows that over 700,000 primary care appointments were undertaken
during 2022-2023 in Halton, however patient experience results show a
reduction in patient satisfaction and ease in getting an appointment. Whilst
not all appointments were face to face, or with a GP, this reflects how
Primary Care is working to maximise capacity through the skills and
services of other practitioners and by alternative methods which may better
suit a patient’'s needs. There is work required to ensure that people
understand the options and opportunities available to them in primary care
to improve satisfaction and positive experience.

5.3.16 Building capacity by utilising a wider multi-disciplinary team will help build
modern general practice and ensure that people are seen in a timelier
manner and by the most appropriate person, which might not always be a
GP i.e., a physio or pharmacist.

5.3.17 Care navigation can also ensure that patients get the right service at the
right time. This can be supported through improvements in telephony, GP
websites and NHS app.

5.3.18 Delivery of the recovery plan, and improved access to Primary Care, is a
long process with many complexities and risks.

5.3.19 Recruitment and retention is a challenge, not only for GPs, but other
supporting professionals.

11



Page 31

5.3.20 Recommendations:

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

Key to delivery of the plan is how general practice works more closely
with, and builds on existing relationships with, the 37 sector.
Voluntary and Community sector stakeholders must be actively involved at
each stage of the delivery plan. A cautious approach should be taken as to
how much the Voluntary and Community sector can deliver to support
Primary Care as the sector is under increased pressure and funding
constraints itself.

The Primary Care workforce needs support to be resilient to aid retention
and attract people in. Promotion through regional and national health and
social care networks of opportunities in Halton should be a priority.
Improved navigation support to help people access the most appropriate
care at the right time. Investment in telephony and other navigation aids,
such as websites and other media channels, could be considered.
Information provided by GP practices in letters, on line etc to include
information for the public about the range of other practitioners, services
and methods of engagement used in Primary Care to bust the myth that
Primary Care is just about seeing a GP and empower people to access the
most appropriate course of action.

Public health to work with the ICB to share with Primary Care
information about public health interventions, and wider cost of living
information and support, for both staff and the public.

Work should be undertaken to better understand the causes of ‘did
not attends’ (DNAs) and action taken to reduce the number of DNAs

Evidence Area 4 — Housing

Housing security, quality of accommodation and factors that increase the
risk of homelessness have a direct effect on the health and wellbeing of
people. It also affects the overall wellbeing and sustainability of
neighbourhoods due to lack of settled communities which can lead to a
reduction in community cohesion. Being homeless can make it more
difficult for people to obtain work and losing a job can make homelessness
a greater risk. This impacts on health inequalities and wider determinants
of health such as the local economy for the wider community, as well as
community and individual safety.

HBCs Housing Solutions Team help prevent, and support, people who are
threatened with homelessness in Halton, providing a community focussed
and accessible service to ensure people know where and how they can
seek help and assistance to prevent them becoming homeless and receive
a confidential housing options service.

e The team is made up of 16 Officers and 2 external commissioned
officers.

e The team respond to housing /homeless enquiries in person, via
advice surgeries held across the borough, over the phone and in
response to intelligence relating to homelessness/potential
homelessness from other stakeholders.

12



5.4.3

Page 32

Local statistics show an increase in the number of people presenting as
homeless, as shown in the table below, with increases projected for future
years.

Homelessness Apr 2021 — Mar 2022 Apr 2022 — Mar 2023
Presentations
Presentations 2039 3156
Homelessness Relief 986 1180
Homelessness 757 1423
Prevention
Statutory Homeless 190 433
5.4.4 The different forms of homelessness include:

5.4.5

5.4.6

o Statutory Homeless defined as:
have no accommodation available to occupy.
are at risk of violence or domestic abuse.
have accommodation but it is not reasonable for them to continue to
occupy it.
have accommodation but cannot secure entry to it.
have no legal right to occupy their accommodation.
live in @ mobile home or houseboat but have no place to put it or live in it.

o Single Homeless - Single people, without families.
o Street Homeless — People sleeping rough.
o Hidden Homeless - People who ‘sofa surf with no fixed abode.

Factors that increase the risk of homelessness in Halton include:
Economic — debt, unemployment

Housing — availability, affordability, decency

Interpersonal — relationships, crime

Individual — health, education

Rough Sleeping — no recourse to public funds

The council has a legal duty to offer temporary accommodation if someone
meets the priority need criteria. Commissioned temporary accommodation
in Halton currently includes:

Halton Lodge, Runcorn 66-bed hostel for single homeless

3 X sit up spaces for rough sleepers

Grangeway Court, Runcorn 14 self-contained units for families /
couple
Brennan Lodge, Widnes 39 bed hostel for single Homeless

13



https://www.gov.uk/guidance/homelessness-code-of-guidance-for-local-authorities/chapter-8-priority-need

Page 33

40

Domestic Abuse Refuge 12 self-contained units for domestic
abuse clients

Nightstop 3 units for families

Bed & Breakfast usage As required

5.4.7

5.4.8

Whilst numbers are low, Halton has seen an increase of new rough
sleepers, along with entrenched rough sleepers resistant to service
provision. These tend to be predominantly male (88%) and usually white
(77%), though increasing numbers from ethnic minorities than 10 years
ago, usually aged between 25 and 45 years. Halton’s rough sleepers have
a range of support needs (48% alcohol, 41% drugs, 35% mental health),
often with an institutional history — 39% have been in prison (though not
necessarily recently), 12% in care and 5% in the armed forces. Some are
migrants without recourse to public funds.

Several local emerging issues and current challenges have been identified
which may impact on people’s ability to sustain tenancies, maintain the
security of a home, and live in decent and appropriate accommodation, all
of which have a knock-on effect on physical and mental health. These
issues include:

Landlords moving established tenants out and new tenants in with a higher
rent.

Housing allowance doesn’t currently align to market rates.

Negative decisions on whether someone is classed as statutory homeless.
then leading to rough sleeping/sofa surfing.

In response to this, there are several local interventions in place to try and
mitigate the impacts. These include:

v' Mental health drop-ins with dedicated officer who can support accelerated

homelessness assessments.

v Multi agency approach to undertake housing assessments, provide advice

and assistance to tenant experiencing property in disrepair and
unsuitability.

v' Community based drop-in services to provide housing and support advice

to people with substance misuse issues.

v’ Liaise directly with hospitals to address hospital discharge at early stages

through client visits in hospital to complete homelessness assessments to
devise move on plan.

v" Promote service provision through stakeholders to encourage early

intervention approach.

v" Trailblazers — working with landlords on disrepair issues.
v

Asylum Seekers support — Officer and Red Cross work with people to
access homelessness assessment and sign posting to other support.

v’ Citizens Advice Bureau - Working with the Courts to do adjournments until

a person has received debt advice. This is working particularly well.

v' There has been levelling up funding for Halton to increase preventive

incentives, such as furniture qift packages, bond guarantee schemes,
private landlord forum (to be reestablished).

14




v

5.4.10

5.4.11

5.4.12

Page 34

Private landlord forum to be re-established.
Conclusion

Currently, the local homelessness prevention and housing support sector
mirrors national trends in which there is increasing demand for prevention
and support services, there is disparity in affordability of
accommodations, increasing demand for accommodation and insufficient
supply of suitable accommodations. The local housing strategy is under
development to look at better use of/support to landlords and increasing
the number of available properties in the borough. This includes looking
at potential units at Columba Hall currently occupied by out of borough
families but could provide 24 suitable accommodations for local families
when current occupants are moved on as part of a planned exit strategy.
Grangeway Court is also being considered for a refurbishment to bring
temporary accommodation units back into use.

The size of the housing register waiting list is projected to increase.
Currently the average waiting time for a family from registration to
accommodation, can be in the region of 46 weeks*. The property allocation
system, Property Pool Plus (PPP,) has recently been updated and should
reduce some of the issues people have experienced around waiting times
and there is an improved appeal process for priority banding available to
try and improve people’s experiences. The new system will be live from
November 2023 and information about it has been presented to HBC
Executive Board with Member training to be arranged. *The average
waiting time for social housing accommodation is 46 weeks, though, this
may vary dependent upon the housing requirements of the client. E.qg.,
adapted accommodation is of a high demand and therefore waiting times
are much higher and can be 2 years plus. Also, demand for larger 4/5 bed
properties is another exception to the average waiting time.

Recommendations:

An options paper will be going to Executive Board in the new year to
discuss the future direction of the housing allocation system and
whether Halton will continue with PPP. (Options likely to include retain
PPP, develop an LCR allocation system or develop a local allocation
system). Members should attend scheduled training sessions on PPP to
understand changes to the system to be able to further understand the
implications of proposed options.

Members of the group felt that as housing supply and demand issues are
projected to increase and there may be a need for more diverse
Members input into housing related decision making. Housing should
be promoted as a priority for all Members.

Whilst members have looked at housing from a health perspective it was
acknowledged that a more strategic oversight of housing was required
in order to understand and respond to housing needs in the borough and
this sat outside the remit of the current scrutiny review.

15



5.5

5.5.1

5.56.2

5.5.3

5.5.4

Page 35

HBC to continue to communicate findings of negative decisions
leading to an increase in rough sleeping and hidden homeless to the
Department for Communities.

Members should be kept up to date with the progress of the planned
exit strategy for Asylum seekers from other local authorities who are
currently using the Hillcrest Hotel (Widnes).

The Homelessness strategy should consider potential for bringing back
current void properties within the borough to maximise local housing stock
options. The strategy should be widely shared with all stakeholders to
support a cohesive approach to accessing funding grants, improving
housing options, reducing homelessness and delivering associated
support services.

Evidence area 5 — Transport

Transport plays an important role in enabling people to maintain
independence, increase social interaction and access employment, health,
leisure, and recreation opportunities. Access to transport is recognised as
a wider determinant of health.

HBCs Transport division has a range of functions:

Public transport — information provision and infrastructure

The council support some commercial bus services where it is not
commercially viable for the provider, but are socially necessary ie to
access employment, health and leisure hubs. It was noted that since the
£2 fare cap in September 2022 there has been an 18% increase in public
transport journeys, which is a positive.

In the last 12 months there were 5.5 million passenger journeys in Halton,
which is unprecedented. That is a significant number for a population of
approx. 130K.

HBC Transport have supported several bus routes to employment sites,
hospitals and leisure and recreation sites where the routes are not
commercially viable at certain times/frequencies. Subsidising these
services is costly, but essential to maintain social inclusion.

Currently, the main Warrington, St Helens, Whiston and Halton hospitals
are relatively well served by the bus/supported bus network.

Specialist door to door transport — Dial a Ride contract

Halton Community Transport contract delivers Dial a Ride. There has been
a year-on-year increase in demand for this service that supports social
inclusion for people unable to use commercial bus services. There are
potential emerging issues with a change in HCT business model as they
are transporting increased numbers of people to medical appointments.
This is impacting on availability for people accessing transport for social
reasons. The service relies on volunteer drivers, of which there are fewer
available. The Merseylink Dial-A-Ride service (also operated by HCT)
does not support any form of medical appointment transport, HCT are
strongly considering a similar model. This could result in a high number of
missed appointments, but it would ensure (with an increasing demand) that

16



5.9.5

5.5.6

5.5.7

5.5.9

Page 36

other passengers are able to book onto the transport for social purposes
and can remain active and independent.

Fleet transport — social care transport provision
HBC in house fleet is doing in the region of 42K journeys per year
transporting adults with social care needs. This is largely done through the
fleet of minibuses and wheelchair accessible cars owned and operated by
the Council, but with some taxi contracts in place also. There is a projected
year on year increase in demand for this service.

Travel training to access education

Travel training is currently available for young people and those moving
through transition to adult services. It was discussed about the lack of
travel training available to other vulnerable cohorts, such as people with
mental health issues and how it could benefit others to access
employment, health etc. Travel training in young people has proven to be
successful in building knowledge and confidence.

Promote active travel ie walking, cycling

Conclusion

There are challenges facing the Transport division, including increased
operating costs v’'s funding, understanding usage/demand for supported

bus services and increase in age related Community Transport usage and
the impact of changes to Halton Community Transport business model.

5.5.10 The withdrawal of Halton Transport had a significant impact on the public

bus network, with the reduction of routes/frequencies that were not picked
up by other commercial operators as they were not financially viable.
Where HBC has supported some of those routes there has been a
significant financial implication for the council.

5.5.11 Dial-A-Ride members state regularly that when they travel on community

transport this is the only time they socialise and interact with others. The
value of being able to access appropriate transport methods, with the
frequencies and routes that are in demand, should not be underestimated
and should be recognised by Members as a valuable enabler to reduce
health inequalities.

5.5.12 Recommendations:

Where HBC is supporting routes and frequencies that would not be picked
up by commercial operators, analysis of usage and consideration of
alternative frequencies/times should be robust to ensure best value for
money. Collecting an evidence base for maintaining these routes to link
people to employment, education, health and recreation should be a
priority, and risk assessments undertaken.

Potential changes to Halton Community Transport business model
should be closely monitored by HBC Transport to ensure that service
capacity is maximised to maintain services that promote social connection

17



5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

Page 37

and reduce social isolation. Risk analysis and options to mitigate the
impact of reduced medical appointment transport should be considered.

It is acknowledged that there are currently gaps in the evening network
and frequencies to some education establishments. Further analysis of
supported bus service usage data is required to modify
frequency/routes to best meet peoples’ needs.

HBC to be actively involved in consultation relating to the Liverpool City
Region (LCR) Transport Franchise Model to ensure that the needs of the
borough are represented.

Active travel not only promotes health and wellbeing through increase
physical activity but is ‘green’ and sustainable. Active travel should be
widely promoted within the community and key stakeholders with
easily accessible information on routes, methods of active travel and
signposting to other useful ‘active’ resources.

Evidence area 6 — Employment, Skills and Health

Employment is a key determinant of health/health inequality in Halton.
Health and employment are intrinsically linked— a person’s health may
determine their ability to work, what work they take or how frequently they
can work. Unemployment is a primary determinant of a person’s economic
situation, and possibly then their ability to maintain a healthy lifestyle and
build economic and social resilience and good mental health.

Halton People into Jobs (HPIJ) therefore is making the links to health as a
key determinant of someone’s ability to access and maintain employment
through proactively working with key employment and health partners such
as the Department for Work and Pensions, HBC’s Adult Learning and
Skills department and HBC’s Health Improvement Team (HIT) to deliver a
wide range of interventions.

In response to learning from the Halton Employment Partnership, a
multiagency group that works to identify barriers and solutions to
employment, skills, recruitment, retention and employment sustainability
through ‘in work support’, HPIJ has developed a comprehensive range of
services addressing health and wellbeing issues that may pose a barrier
for people to access work, or skills training. A summary of the support
programmes is shown below:

18



5.6.4

o
o
o

5.6.6

Page 38

Halton People into Jo.bs
Ways to Work Programme
Work and Health Programme
Pioneer Support Programme
Restart Programme

Supported Internship Programme
(cross Division)

Free recruitment and job matching
service to employers

ILM — wage subsidy programme

HPU1 and HPLJ2 Church Street
HPI) Kingsway Learning Centre

Adult Learning & Skills

Mental health and wellbeing offer
Maths, English and ICT
Employability provision

Personal development

ESOL provision

Pathways to Teaching

Quality and Learner Experience
Learner Voice

Kingsway Learning Centre & Acorn
Learning Centre

Halton Employment Partnership

Partnership that contributes to the
councils corporate plan

Act as the main point of contact for
employers (large scale projects)
Supports business solutions and
interventions, which will assist local
employers with recruitment, skills,
apprenticeships, grants etc.
Supports development of bids for
funding which will support local
businesses to employ local people
Assists businesses in achieving
relevant employment and skills
KPlIs/social value outputs

Signposts employers to a range of
available support services e.g. Skills
Brokerage Service

HPIJ has two bases in Widnes from which it delivers the above
programmes, and two in Runcorn. All the above programmes are
predicated around providing a personalised, holistic approach to providing
information advice and guidance on not only accessing suitable
employment opportunities and skills training, but addressing barriers that
have prevented them from doing so previously. People are supported to
develop realistic and sustainable employment goals and a course of action
to achieve them.

The key cohorts supported by HPIJ are:

Unemployed people

Economically inactive

People residing in economically deprived wards

health condition or disability (physical, mental health, learning difficulty)

a carer or former carer

a homeless person

a former member (or partner) of His Majesty’s (HM) armed forces

a member (or partner) of the HM armed forces reserves

a care leaver / NEET young person

a young person in a gang or at risk of being involved with a gang

a refugee

a victim of domestic violence

dependent (or have been dependent) on drugs or alcohol and it's
preventing you from getting work

an ex-offender and you've completed a custodial or community sentence
or an offender serving a community sentence

Subject to eligibility, depending on what HPIJ programme a person
accesses, practical support on offer includes:
e Full assessment of the individual's
circumstances

goals, barriers and

19



5.6.7

5.6.8

5.6.9

Page 39

¢ Reverse marketing to potential employers, targeting companies and
organisations that have realistic and sustainable employment
opportunities.

e |Information, advice, and guidance on realistic employment
opportunities

e Access to funding for interview/work clothes

e Access to funding for employment skills training and education
qualifications, such as literacy and numeracy.

e Access to funding to remove barriers to employment such as short
term funding for transport or one off payments to purchase a bike,
for example.

e Access to funding to purchase employment essentials such as
licenses.

e Self-care packages containing personal hygiene products.

e Supported Internships and In work support

Collaboration with Public Health’s HIT means bespoke packages of health
and employment support can be offered to people whose health and
wellbeing circumstances are identified as a barrier them from accessing
employment.

HIT health trainers provide health screening for mental health and physical
health through NHS Health Checks for HPIJ clients identified as having a
potential health and wellbeing barrier to employment. People are
supported by HIT to set health and wellbeing goals, which are then
addressed through a range of bespoke services, such as weight
management programmes, exercise on prescription and condition
information and management workshops.

Through a successful funding bid, HPIJ and HIT were able to do some
small-scale research about what prevents people from accessing
employment and skills opportunities through a series of interviews with
HPIJ clients, which resulted in the introduction of weekend lifestyle clinics
and health checks.

5.6.10 The work of HPIJ, Adult Learning and Skills and Health Improvement team

have evidenced the following outcomes from their programmes:

condition to start or retain employment
®  |ncreased confidence levels
® |ncreased motivation

= |ncreased engagement (reduction in social exclusion)

Halton People into Jobs Halton Adult Learning
= lLocal residents supported into paid employment = Attendance rates
= local residents into self-employment = Achievement rates
= Completion paid/unpaid work placement = Retention rates
= Completion of training ® Progression into employment
= Addressed barriers to work = |ncreased confidence levels
=  Accessed support or specialist services to manage = Increased motivation

20




Page 40

5.6.11 People who have used HPIJ services have provdied the following
feedback:

= ““Just to update you on vesterdays interview. They rang me yesterday afternoon to tell me | GOT THE JOB !!!!
I'm really shocked but so pleased. It's all down to all your help & support with all those interview preps we've
done so thanks so much!”

= “Made a fundamental difference for me. When we met | had basically no hope of re-entering the workforce,
convinced that | had nothing of value to offer and frankly discouraged from trying, but today | feel like I'm
living in an entirely different world”

= “I've got hope, some confidence and even ambition. I'm collaborating with peers to work on projects”

=  “I'm attending training courses, and I'm applying for roles that I'd previously have disregarded”

= “Brilliant service, felt motivated for my journey for looking work and get more information how to develop
myself”

= “Kind, supportive, understanding and flexible to meet my needs”

=  “l know what | can expect and I'm feeling very positive and in good hands”

= “Communication inspiration and really good support thank you”

= “| was petrified when | first came here. Now | love coming here for appointments”

= “l ooking forward to advancing in my job search with a very helpful and knowledgeable advisor”

=  “The support | have received has been amazing. My advisor has pushed me beyond my limits”

* Good communication/organisation/supportive/enthusiastic”

Conclusion

5.6.12 HPIJ offers impartial advice and tailored packages of support through
partnership working and collaboration with other services to remove
barriers to employment.

5.6.13 The collaboration between HPIJ and HIT ensures that people are getting
the right help at the right time. Addressing health and wellbeing barriers
helps people find the right kind of work and aids sustainability of
employment.

5.6.14 The cost-of-living crisis has disproportionately affected people with existing
poor health, further impacting their ability to maintain a healthy lifestyle.
This in turn affects their ability to enter/sustain employment. Linking with
HIT has provide HPIJ clients with direct access to specialist signposting
and support to mitigate some of the impact.

5.6.15 Capacity within the Learning and Skills department has been affected by
the ability to recruit tutors, however, the department has adopted a ‘grow
our own’ approach and offers opportunities to train as a tutor.

5.6.16 Recommendations

= A focus should remain on community engagement and marketing of
HPIJ to raise the profile of the Employment Learning and Skills service to
both Halton residents and employers — promoting the range of support to
reach key cohorts.

= Relationship building with the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP)
is key to maintaining consistent level of referrals needed to our DWP
funded programmes i.e. Restart, Work and Health Programme by
Jobcentre Plus

21



Page 41

= Ensure that appropriate referrals are made to the Supported Internship
Programme to maximise support on offer to young people with an
Education, Health and Care Plan.

= Consideration should be given to funding post March 2025, Future funding
has more of an increased focus on supporting economically inactive
cohorts— however, there are emerging cohorts that may not recognise
themselves as being in need/eligible for support, such as people affected
by the cost-of-living crisis, people not previously unemployed and those
impacted by redundancy etc.

* HPIJ should continue to promote the Disability Confidence
accreditation through signposting and providing information on how
employers can access the scheme.

= Promote the Liverpool City Region (LCR) Fair Employment Charter to
prospective employers.

= Seek employment opportunities with employing organisations that
meet the National Living Wage.

= HPWJ to provide an update report on outcomes and emerging issues to
HPPB.

5.7 Evidence area 7 — Income Maximisation

5.7.1 Maximising income is an important service provided by HBCs Benefits
Division, as it is often the most vulnerable people who are eligible for
statutory benefits, discretionary benefits, short term cost of living support
and welfare benefits advice.

5.7.2 Statutory benefits delivered by Benefits Division include Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Reduction, with the main case load (approx. 90%) being
in Council Tax Reduction cases (in the region of 11,000 cases).

5.7.3 Discretionary Housing Payment is a non-statutory benefit administered by
the Division that provides short term help with rent for claimants receiving
housing benefit or housing element of Universal Credit. The grant
allocation from central government has been reduced over the last 3 years.
The table below shows spend and number of payment allocations:

Year DHP spend Number of Number of Number of
applications  awards refusals
2020/21 £527.396 1,390 1,007 383
2021/22 £394,071 1,207 736 471
2022/23 £279.321 1,251 828 423
1/4/23 — 30/9/23 £110,907 463 366 97

5.7.4 Period of award is 18 weeks and a claimant may receive 2 awards. A
Common reason for refusal is claimant not providing sufficient information.

5.7.5 The Discretionary Support Scheme is a local welfare scheme that has

been in operation since 2013, which provides short term assistance with
emergency support and community support. Emergency support

22



5.7.6

5.7.7

5.7.8

5.7.9

Page 42

comprises of food parcels and assistance with gas and electric.
Community support relates to help setting up a home, such as providing
kitchen equipment, beds, bedding and other essential items to furnish a
home. To be eligible for community support an applicant must be receiving
a means tested benefit. The Discretionary Support Scheme operates in
accordance with a member approved policy and applications are made by
telephone. There are a high number of refusals for this scheme, largely
due to the claimant’s income being too high or not providing sufficient
evidence.

The Household Support Fund is a scheme introduced by the government
to assist with the cost of living. The government introduced this fund in
October 2021, and has released funds in 6 monthly tranches (although the
most recent tranche was 12 months), this has made it quite difficult to
coordinate.
The spend for this grant is shown below:
Spend for period 15 October 2022 — 315 March 2023
Area of spend Amount
Free school meal vouchers £12/week for school holidays £536,592
Vulnerable pensioner household payment £100 (4,055 pensioners) £405.500
Discretionary Support Scheme £167.314
Halton Citizens Advice Bureau £49.977
Runcorn Foodbank £10.000
Widnes Foodbank £10.000
Holiday Activity Food programme £5.000
Energy Projects Plus £9.745
Halton Voluntary Action £10.,000
Total £L20_-‘-L1£|
The Welfare Rights Service sits within the Division and offers specialist
advice on:

e Welfare rights

e Benefit checks and calculations

e Assistance with completing complex benefits applications

e Advocating in decision tribunals
The service supports people to access the right benefits in a timely manner

through face to face and telephone appointments.

5.7.10 Specialist debt advisors within the service have limited capacity, so

support is for referred clients only. McMillan Welfare Rights Advisors
provide specific support to people with cancer or other life limiting illness.

23



Page 43

5.7.11 Over 2022/23 the Welfare Rights service has brought over £2.5 million in
benefit income to Halton residents through the identification and successful
application for benefits that they had not rightfully claimed.

5.7.12 Public Health worked with Welfare Rights service to identify people who
may be eligible for Pension Credits and undertook a campaign to contact
them to inform them of the process of applying. Nine hundred residents
received a letter, of which 240 responded and received a 1:1 appointment
to get support to complete the application, with 77 going on to complete
the application. The outcomes of which is shown below:

» £137,608 - Pension Credit take up annually
» £1,067,457 - Lifetime value (to 80 years)
» £5.20 - £8,671 - Range of annual income

5.7.13 Pension credit is a ‘gateway’ benefit, that opens up eligability to a range of
other benefits, including cold weather payments, help with dental treatment
and free TV licence.

5.7.14 Feedback received from people who had benefited from the contact and
support is shown below:

“l can now take my
husband (who has
dementia) out for a

88% of residents said
that the letter and
information leaflet

Was very easy or easy

to understand.

new mattress. We may
finally get some sleep.”
- Marian

“It was good of the
relevant authorities to
make me aware of what
was available even if
we did not qualify for
any help. Many thanks.”

Feedback

“The lady officer was
really helpful and put
me at ease, she couldn't
be nicer.”

70% of people didn’t
think they’d be
eligible.

5.7.15 Healthy Start supports families of children aged 0-4 years in means tested
benefits through access to food and milk vouchers. Halton has the 10t
highest sign up through a targeted approach, working with family hubs and
data focused signposting to help people navigate the benefits system.

24



Page 44

Conclusions

5.7.16 The benefit of increasing benefit income for Halton residents is
multifaceted. It increases income into the household where there is a fixed
income and may therefore help to alleviate financial pressures leading to
health and other social drivers of health inequality. The increased spending
power of households may then benefit the local economy.

5.7.17 Halton has demonstrated how targeted, proactive engagement can help
people benefit form Pension Credits and Healthy Start, in particular, with
good take up levels and income maximisation results.

5.7.18 There are emerging cohorts of people who may not identify themselves as
being in need or eligible for statutory or discretionary benefits, such as
older people or people in employment, or who have previously not claimed
any benefits. There has historically been a stigma associated with claiming
both statutory and discretionary benefits, which may be a barrier to people
who are eligible.

5.7.19 There are a high number of rejected claims, largely due to income being
too high or not meeting other eligibility criteria. For those who do not
engage with the process or provide sufficient evidence beyond initial
contact, a number of these may be eligible, but could be put off pursuing
due to the nature of the application process, or perceived nature of the
application process.

5.7.20 There are an increasing number of households who have been affected by
the cost-of-living crisis who do not meet benefits criteria, yet are in need.

5.7.21 Nationally there is a huge gap with unclaimed benefits (estimated around
£19billion), it is likely that this picture is reflected locally.

5.7.22 Recommendations

¢ Focus should remain on engaging with cohorts that may be eligible for
income maximisation schemes — through targeted approaches, with
awareness raising and reducing stigma at the forefront of
communications.

e Consideration should be given as to how unclaimed benefits could be
utilised to support those who ‘fall between the gaps’. This may require
national lobbying.

e HBC to consider how more support can be put in place for people who
want to claim benefits recognising that some may lack the skills and
knowledge or might feel daunted by the process. Signpost ineligible
clients to CAB and other voluntary sector groups who may be able to
identify other relevant support.

6.0 Recommendations made to Health Policy and Performance
Board

6.1 Each evidence area has generated several service specific
recommendations to be considered as part of ongoing service

25



Page 45

development and commissioning, however, there were common themes
across all areas. In considering the evidence presented, Members propose
the following recommendations for action;

Thematic area

Recommendation

1 | Partnership

Continue to build on relationships with key partners
to develop approaches to engage with hard-to-
reach cohorts through increasing awareness of the
determinants of health inequality, reducing stigma
associated with seeking help and developing
effective pathways to support - Joining the dots
between different agencies working with the
different determinants of health inequality and
helping people navigate effectively.

2 | Communication

Community engagement and profile raising of the
breadth of support available should be a priority.
Individual service specific plans should be
developed to ensure that a universal support offer
is communicated. The plan should link existing
local and national support for each determinant of
health, considering how the most vulnerable and
hard to reach cohorts can be informed of support
through targeted, multi-channel approaches.

3 | Lobbying
/involvement in
national action

On local issues identified in this report that may
require a central solution, such as utilising
unclaimed benefits, issues relating to housing and
homelessness — Halton Borough Council and its
key partners should actively engage in national
lobbying and consultations. Members should be
kept informed of key issues.

4 | Risk Mitigation

Where risks are identified within service specific
risk mitigation plans should be put in place — for
example where funding models or changes in key
partner business models are anticipated to have an
impact on what/how services are delivered.

5 | Service Specific
Action Health
Inequality Plan

Throughout this process, and outlined in this
report, recommendations have been made that
relate to each specific evidence area. These
should be considered by service managers as part
of business planning, service development and risk
management.

6 | Funding

Funding of commissioned services that support the
determinants of health inequalities should be
reviewed and reported to HPPB, to better
understand the impact of short vs long term
funding.

Social
7 | Prescribers

A request for a presentation on the activities of the
ICB commissioned social connectors service to the
HPPB so that the Board may better understand the
role they play and impact on addressing health

26




6.2

Page 46

| | inequality in Halton.

The Chair thanks all Members, Officers and Contributors for their input to
this scrutiny review.

27



Appendix 1 — Evidence presented to Members

Date Time Location | Theme Speaker
Thursday 6" | 6pm RTH CR | Background and timeframe of review Dr Ifeoma Onyia — Director of Public Health
July 1
Thursday 31st | 6pm RTH CR | Wider Determinants lan Baddily - Divisional Manager
August 1 e Cost Of Living Matt Hancock - Public Health Wider
e Food Determinants Practice Manager
e Warmth
e Energy
Thursday 6pm RTH CR | Health care Interventions to reduce Health Tony Leo - ICB Place Director
28t Sept 1 Inequalities
Thursday 6pm RTH Cr1 | Wider Determinants Patricia Preston — Housing Solutions
26t Oct e Housing Manager
e Transport to health and wellbeing hubs in the lan Boyd - Lead Officer Transport Co-
borough ordination
NOV
Thursday 6pm RTH CR | Wider Determinants Lynsey Carr - Halton Into Jobs (35mins) and
30th Nov 1 e Employment Stephen Purcell - HIT Public Health

¢ Income Maximisation
Support Schemes

Paul Garnett - Divisional Manager Benefits
David Gray - Welfare Rights Manager
Matt Hancock - Public Health Wider
Determinants Practice Manager

)1 obed



Thematic Area

Presentation

Defining Health Inequalities

@

Improving%20health
%20and%20reducing

Public Health response to the cost of living crisis

L

PBB Current
interventions.pptx

Improving access to Primary Care

PDF

Halton - General
Practice Access HPPB

Housing and Homelessness

&)

Homelessness%20Pr
esentation%20Final.p|

Transport

L

PRESENTATION%20T
ransport.pptx

Employment, Skills and Health

L

Health%20Inequalitie
s%20scrutiny%20revi

Income Maximisation

L

By @

Pension%20Credit%2 Healthy%20Start%20 Benefits%20Division

OPowerpoint%20Fina

Scheme.pptx %20presentation%20

g abed



Page 49 Agenda ltem 6a

REPORT TO: Executive Board

DATE: 18 April 2024

REPORTING OFFICER: Executive Director - Environment & Regeneration
PORTFOLIO: Environment and Urban Renewal

SUBJECT: Production of Borough wide Housing Strategy
WARD(S) Borough wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

2.0

3.0

3.1

To seek support of Executive Board for the commissioning and production of
a new Borough wide Housing Strategy and approval to undertake stakeholder
engagement and wider community consultation as an integral part of the
production process.

RECOMMENDATION: That
The Board:

1) Endorse the commissioning and production of a new Borough wide
Housing Strategy and supporting evidence base;

2) Provides delegated approval to the Executive Director Environment &
Regeneration, in consultation with Portfolio Holder for Environment
and Urban Renewal, to agree details of the Housing strategy
production, including draft documentation and activity for
stakeholder engagement and wider community consultation; and

3) Upon completion of the production and consultation process, receive
a further report seeking a recommendation to Council that the new
Borough wide Housing Strategy be approved.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

At its meeting on the 6" March 2024, the Council approved the adoption of a
new Corporate Plan. This Plan sets out the main vision, themes and values of
the Council. The Plan includes six priorities to direct the resources of the
Council (and influence our partners) for next five years. Priority six of the Plan
being:

“Valuing and appreciating Halton and Our Communities — Supporting
Halton’s residents to live in decent and affordable homes, surrounded
by safe and thriving communities.”



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 50

The Council’s housing responsibilities and functions are broad. They are both
statutory and non-statutory. They contribute to delivery across the Corporate
Plan from: enabling people to live independently and in their homes for longer;
to ensure homes are more energy efficient and less reliant on non-renewable
resources; and to, improving the choice and quality of homes on offer in our
town centres, to support their regeneration as sustainable places to live.

The 2021 Census counted 55,951 households in Halton and the latest Local
Land and Property Gazetteer (LLPG) has 59,206 residential properties listed.
The Boroughs Delivery and Allocation Local Plan (DALP), adopted in 2022,
seeks development of at least 8,050 (net) additional homes between 2014 to
2037. The DALP also incorporates the policies in respect of affordable and
specialist housing requirements. A new Housing Strategy will provide the
strategic policy context to coordinate activity and interventions by the Council
and our partners to realise the Corporate Plan and the DALP across existing
stock and delivery of new homes.

The current Borough wide Housing Strategy was adopted in 2013, at a time of
declining public sector resources and was realistic in its scope and ambition.
In recent years, there has been more national attention to housing issues
including affordability, scale and pace of building new homes and quality of
existing stock. With this attention has come new funding opportunities at both
a national and devolved Combined Authority level. Demonstrating an up-to-
date Housing Strategy is important evidence to support funding bids by
ourselves and our partners, such as Registered Providers.

The Council does not currently have a dedicated strategic housing function
within the organisation. Statutory housing responsibilities and functions are
delivered across a number of Council directorates and services areas. The
organisational housing policy framework is summarised below:

One Halton
Corporate Plan Local Plan Health & Wellbeing
Adopted March 2024 Adopted March 2022 Strategy
Adopted Oct 2022

Climate Change

Action Plan
Adopted Feb 2022

Housing Strategy

Homes
Assistance
Policy

Vierrelessmess Tenancy Children & Young Affordable
iy Strategy People Sufficiency Warmth

(Liverpool City Region]) Strategy Strategy

Housing Existing Housing HMO Licencing &
Allocation Policy Decarbonisation Enforcement
{Property Pool Plus) Policy Policy

Adult Social Care -
Final market
sustainability plan

Regeneration
Plans

To guide the commissioning, production and consultation of the Housing
Strategy an internal officer working group was formed in 2023, from across



3.7

3.8

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.0

5.1

Page 51

these service areas. This is complemented by an external Halton Housing
Partnership (HHP). The HHP is an interface between the Council and main
Registered Providers in Halton. The corporate lead for the HHP is the
Executive Director Environment & Regeneration. Registered Providers are
supportive of the production of a new Housing Strategy and evidence base. It
will help inform and shape their provision within the Borough and how they
work with the Council to commission and meet specialist housing needs.

The key early messages from the officer working group and HHP are set out
at Appendix A. These messages form the basis for commissioning production
of a new Housing Strategy.

Production of a Housing Strategy is a specialist task and required to be
commissioned externally. A 12 month production period is anticipated,
allowing for stakeholder engagement and community consultation.
Stakeholder engagement will include a dedicated session with Elected
Members, and presentations to relevant Policy and Performance Boards prior
to public consultation.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Whilst production of a local (Borough wide) housing strategy is no longer a
statutory requirement, most local authorities still provide one. It is recognised
that by having an up-to-date strategic policy framework for housing will
improve and coordinate the delivery of statutory and non-statutory housing
responsibilities and functions by the Council and local partners. Helping to
ensure the Council remains responsive to community needs.

The Borough'’s previous Housing Strategy, was adopted in 2013 and covered
a period up to 2018. It is in need of comprehensive review and replacement.
Production of new Strategy requires the identification, gathering and analysis
of any supporting evidence base gaps, this will include an up-to-date Housing
Needs Assessment.

This process is anticipated to streamline the current housing policy
framework, by incorporating and replacing older ‘stand-alone’ policies such as
the Affordable Warmth Strategy with the Housing Strategy. It may also direct
changes to specific Council housing polices, such as the Homes Assistance
Policy.

A 5 — 10 year action plan will accompany the Strategy to ensure effective
implementation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Commissioning external production of the Housing Strategy and evidence
base will be met from existing budgets. Cost will be minimised through
collation of existing evidence base, to be provided upon appointment. This will
reduce duplication and help target resources at filling data gaps.



5.2

5.3

5.4

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 52

The intended outcome is to have a net positive impact on the Council’s
financial position.

Production has been aligned to support implementation of the ‘Reimagine
Halton’ transformation programme, which includes a number of project
strands with a strong housing dimension:

e Enabling greater independence and flexibility for adults;

e Maximising digital technology innovations across Adult Social Care;

e An ambition to accelerate growth within the Borough.

This could include recommendations for:
¢ Building organisational capacity and structuring to provide a focus for
the strategic housing functions within the Council,
¢ Wider borough governance arrangements to foster strategic housing
partnerships to co-fund and co-manage delivery;
¢ Maximising external funding opportunities; and
e Utilising redundant Council owned land to meet local housing need.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Children & Young People in Halton

Adequate and safe housing provides the security to enable children, young
people and families to thrive. The Housing Strategy will support achieving this.

Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton

The choice, quality and affordability of the Borough’s housing offer is a
foundation stone for a strong and sustainable local economy. The Housing
Strategy will support this.

A Healthy Halton

Housing standards and conditions is recognised as a wider determinant of
Health and wellbeing outcomes of people. The Housing Strategy will seek
better integration of health and housing policy and provision.

A Safer Halton

Provision of affordable and specialist housing is important to supporting
individuals and communities who are most vulnerable. The Housing Strategy
will ensure the Council and partners are more responsive to community
needs.

Halton’s Urban Renewal

Utilising vacant brownfield sites to deliver more homes and support
regeneration will be a supported through the Housing Strategy.



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

Page 53

RISK ANALYSIS

There are no significant risks associated with the production of a new Housing
Strategy.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES
There are none.
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

Heating and energy use in homes accounts for approximately 15% of carbon
emissions within the UK. The Housing Strategy will seek to support delivery of
the housing matters set out within the Climate Change Action Plan. This will
include updating policy in respect of de-carbonising existing homes in Halton.
The Strategy will also support a housing offer which gives residents choice to
live more environmentally friendly and sustainable lives. For example through
opportunities to improve the choice and quality of housing offer within
Borough’s town centres.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer

A Housing Strategy for ~ Council Website Nathan Renison,
Halton (2013 — 2018) Regeneration Team



https://councillors.halton.gov.uk/documents/s30211/Appendix%20A.docx.pdf

Page 54

Appendix A — key early messages identified by the HSWG and HHP

The HSWG and HHP have identified three areas of focus for production of a
housing strategy:

1. Information & Data, Key Gaps

2. Strategic Themes

3. Delivery & Partnership Working

These areas have been identified to not only aid housing policy development
but also to ensure effective implementation and delivery of the Housing
Strategy upon adoption.

These are summarised below:
1. Information & Data, Key Gaps

“Evidenced base is critical to support policy implementation, justify
interventions and funding bids”

« Up to date information on people's housing needs:
o Better understanding of demand v supply i.e. Size of dwellings, No.
of beds
o Specialist housing and client groups, identifying trends and
predicating future needs
o Locational trends i.e. where to provide extra care / older people
accommodation
[Achieved through advanced production of Borough wide Housing
Needs Assessment]
o Detailed information on condition of housing stock:
o General housing condition, targeted at areas / tenures
o Stock coming to end of life, i.e. some former new town construction
types
o No. of accessible and adapted homes
o Energy performance and warmth
« Better mapping of providers:
o Location of affordable housing and specialist provision
o Details / register of private landlords
o Access to Local Letting Policies to promote consistency

2. Strategic Themes

“Residents able to access housing that meets their needs, throughout
their life”

o Maximising delivery of affordable and specialist housing.

« Improve quality and standards of existing stock, particularly private
rented sector.

« Enabling greater independence and flexibility for adults through
promoting choice and enabling people to remain within their own
home.



3.

Page 55

Relationship to health outcomes, empowering communities, inclusivity
and life chances — People.

Improve the energy efficiency of new and existing homes, to make
them warmer, reduce heating costs and contribute to Borough'’s
Climate Change Action Plan.

More than just homes, also decent neighbourhoods and access to
amenities .

Making most of Borough’s wasted resources i.e. empty homes, vacant
brownfield land.

Locational priorities, i.e. neighborhood renewal and town centres.
Need for innovation and learning from best practice

(i.e. use of digital technology to enable people to live independently)
The prevention of homelessness and rough sleeping.

Bespoke and specialist provision, including but not limited to: care
leavers and those at risk of domestic abuse.

Delivering and accelerating sustainable housing growth to support
economic development, attracting, and retaining employees/ residents.

Delivery & Partnership Working

“Create a housing policy framework to achieve more joined up
coordination and delivery within the Council and with partners”

Promote good partnership working centered on empowering residents

to achieve better outcomes.

Need for improved communication and transparency between housing

sector stakeholders in Halton:

o Understand each others priorities better

o Collaborate on capital and external funding opportunities

o Competing priorities for housing — agree approach to sourcing
properties to ensure equity for all client groups

o Co-ordinated response to shared challenges

Strategic planning - establish processes to bring Council

Commissioning into early discussions when looking at new

developments:

o Opportunities to include supported accommodation and services,
are being developed in partnership

o Ensure housing providers / developers can evidence demand for
services (supported accommodation, residential care)

o Inclusion of specific household needs / requirements for adapted
housing, down to an individual family needs

Delivery of Housing Strategy will require housing provider ‘Buy In’:

o Changes to Adult Social Care Services (Reimagine Halton
Transformation Programme)



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	Minutes

	3a Urgent Decisions
	4a Annual Review of Constitution
	5a Health Inequalities Scrutiny Review Report and Recommendations
	EB 180424 Appendix 1 Health Inequalities Scrutiny Group Membeership.docx
	180424 EB Scrutiny Review Report 2023.doc

	6a Production of Borough wide Housing Strategy

